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The Cupola House is a two-story Victorian Italianate house. It is a large house 
with an ordered and majestic appearance. The main part of the house is a central 
block constructed completely in wood. A slightly lower addition extends from a 
portion of the back wall. Both parts of the house have hipped roofs with decorative 
brackets. The roof of the back wing has a ridge, while the main house has a deck 
with the prominent feature of the house, a cupola. The striking cupola has two 
long, narrow windows on each side and a surrounding balustrade. The overall design 
of the cupola echoes the proportions and details of the house, with matching brackets, 
wide eaves, and a tall finial.

The front of the house has four sets of paired windows, symmetrically arranged and 
trimmed with shutters and cornices. Six of these four-over-four sash windows appear 
singly on each of the side walls of the house. A small gable with a small window 
and a decorative barge board breaks the facade. It resembles a broken pediment; 
the barge board is richly embellished with decorative scroll and is crowned with a 
finial.

A front entry porch with a balcony is supported by two square columns and is trimmed 
with brackets and railing. The double front door is flanked by pilasters that 
support a decorative cornice. A small porch shelters the back door on the south 
side (rear) at the ell of the back wing. The porch features square columns and 
brackets that match the front entry porch.

On the interior of the house there is still the wall paper that was "imported from 
Milwaukee" by the original owner. The wide stairway leads to the second floor 
ballroom with wainscoting on the walls. The first floor kitchen has wainscoting 
like that in the ballroom. Servants quarters are located on the second floor. 
The house has 14 rooms and much of the original hardware in the house; still remains, 
including window locks and coat hooks.

The only alteration to the exterior of the house is the addition of a stairway 
at the rear. Inside, bathrooms have been installed and the servants' stairway 
from the kitchen has been closed off to allow the space to be used for pipes for 
the plumbing.

At the south side of the house is an old milk cooling and storage house. It has 
thick stone walls and a steeply gabled roof. There is a rectangular vent protruding 
from the ridge of the roof. The walls are broken by one window and a door.

To the southeast of the house there is a barn that was probably built within five 
years after the house was completed. The barn is composed of two wings, with the 
ridge of the lower structure hitting the other just above the eaves. Board and 
batten sheathes the larger wing, while the wide, vertical boards on the smaller 
wing are accompanied by wood shingles at the gable. The barn is used for storage.

Northeast of the house there is a small frame cottage built in 1930 as a caretaker's 
residence. Now it is leased in the summer as a residence. The cottage is not 
significant to the nomination.

1. Superior Telegram, 
26 Nov. 1917.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Cupola House is locally significant as the home of Levi Thorp, a prominent mercantile 
pioneer in both Door County and Egg Harbor. His majestic house reflects his importance 
and is significant as the best domestic example of the Italianate style in Door County 
and is one of that county's finest examples of Victorian architecture. It remains 
virtually unchanged since its construction.

Levi Thorp migrated to Egg Harbor from New York in 1855. Prior to his settlement there, 
Levi spent five years in California making his (first) fortune in the Gold Rush of 1849. 
Settling in Egg Harbor with his brother, Jacob, Thorp teamed with his brother to buy 1600 
acres of land and to build a pier and crib. The crib was an enclosed storage space that 
was used to store commercial wood. In 1857 Levi bought out his brother's interests. 2

The Thorp pier was the second onein Door County and provided economic livelihood and 
prosperity to the peninsula. Abundant forests of pine and cedar supplied the materials 
for the lumbering operations, which rapidly grew to dominate the Door County economy. 
Thorp's dock handled a great deal of cordwood that was sold to wood burning sidewheeler 
ships which stopped to refuel at his pier.^ He employed many people and attracted a 
wealth of commerce to Egg Harbor. Mr. Thorp, furthermore, operated a general farm. In 
1880 he had the largest farm in the county. He made the first commercial planting of 
apple orchards in the northern part of the county in 1894, and operated a general 
mercantile store in Egg Harbor.^

For sixteen years Levi Thorp lived in a log cabin at the foot of the future site of the 
Cupola House, collecting the perfect materials for his dream house. Thorp accepted only 
the best white pine lumber shipped from Menominee, Michigan. "He would not accept a 
single board or plank that had a knot in it..." The interior was decorated by interior 
decorators from Milwaukee. The Cupola House reflects Thorp's importance and his 
ambitious undertaking in the construction of his home. Sitting upon a hill, the house 
draws attention from all who see it, befitting Thorps position in the community. It has 
a quiet, nearly classical dignity evoked through a balanced and simple design. The ex­ 
terior ornamentation enhances its integrity rather than creating a frivolous effect. 
When it was built, it was (and still is) the most elegant and extravagant house in Egg 
Harbor. Moreover, it remains the best example of vernacular Italianate in the county.

Throughout his life, Levi Throp took great advantage of opportunities for economic increase 
This pioneer and expansionist spirit characterizes those ambitious people who essentially 
formed newborn communities. Thorp's significance lies in his importance to the community; 
Egg Harbor, like other embryonic communities, burgeoned through the interests of instru­ 
mental people. Levi Thorp was one such person.
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8. SIGNIFICANCE (continued)

Since 1906 the Thorp House has served exclusively as a summer residence for 
three different owners. The Charles Cady family owned it from 1907 to 1975, 
They took good care of the house, preserving its original integrity. The 
Thorp House continues to serve as a summer residence, although the owner is 
considering selling the house to the Door County Historical Society.

1. Superior Telegram, 26 November 1917.

2. Ibid.

3. Hjalmar R. Holand, History of Door County, pp. 396-397.

4. United States Census Schedules for Wisconsin, 1880. Agricultural records 
	of Door County.

5. Holand, op. cit., p. 85.

6. Superior Telegram, 26 November 1917.
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